
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
December 28, 2015 

5:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Jim Sharp 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance   
5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports 
8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director/City Treasurer 
9. Approval of Minutes –  December 14, 2015 (Work Session), and December 14, 2015  

(Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

10. Ordinance Number 2611 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3579 Valley Circle, Lot 18, 
Block 1, Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; P. David Deusner, Owner  
(Public Hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2612 – Rezoning - 3579 Valley Circle, Lot 18, Block 1, Amended 
Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To 
Vestavia Hills, R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; P. David Deusner, Owner  
(Public Hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2613 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3527 Valley Circle, Lot 5, 
Block 1, Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Paul and Katie 
Harbison, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2614 – Rezoning - 3527 Valley Circle, Lot 5, Block 1, Amended Map 
Of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia 
Hills, R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Paul and Katie Harbison, Owners  
(Public Hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2615 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2615 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 6, 
Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owners  (Public 
Hearing) 



15. Ordinance Number 2616 – Rezoning - 2615 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 6, Altadena Valley 
Country Club Sector; Rezone From Shelby County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; 
Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Bradley And Kelly Belew, Owners  (Public 
Hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2617 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2700 Alta View Drive; Brad 
and Molly Ainsworth, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2618 – Rezoning – 2700 Alta View Drive; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Brad And Molly 
Ainsworth, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2619 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4670 Caldwell Mill Road; 
Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2620 – Rezoning – 4670 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone From Jefferson 
County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Brooks and 
Elisabeth Souders, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2621 – Rezoning – 3112 Blue Lake Drive, Lot 5, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential) To Vestavia Hills O-1 
(Office District); HD Holdings, LLC, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2622 – Conditional Use Approval – 2565 Mountain Woods Drive; 
Lot 16, Mountain Woods Park, 2nd Addition; Conditional Use For The Housing And 
Raising Of Six (6) Urban Hens With Conditions; April And Ginger Aaron-Brush, 
Owners  (Public Hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2623 – Conditional Use Approval – 1793 Shades Crest Road; 
Conditional Use Approval For Construction Of A Guest House On Said Property With 
Conditions; David B. Delozier, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2624 – Conditional Use Approval – 1836 And 1842 Shades Crest 
Road; Lots 1 & 2, Bradshaw Addition To Vestavia; Conditional Use Approval To 
Construct Front Security Fence/Gates; Phylis And John Smith, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

24. Resolution Number 4778 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Repair The 
Wald Park Swimming Pool  (Public Hearing) 

25. Resolution Number 4779 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() [Proj. Ref. 
No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba River Road From 
SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For Preliminary Engineering  (Public 
Hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 4780 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() [Proj. Ref. 
No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba River Road From 
SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For Right-Of-Way Agreement  (Public 
Hearing) 



27. Resolution Number 4781 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() [Proj. Ref. 
No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba River Road From 
SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For Roadway And Intersection 
Improvements  (Public Hearing) 

28. Resolution Number 4782 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver Multijurisdictional Agreements With The Cities Of Mountain Brook, 
Birmingham And Jefferson County For Project Number STPBH-3715() Cahaba River 
Road From SR-38 (US 280) To Key Drive  (Public Hearing) 

29. Ordinance Number 2626 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver A General Sales Contract For The Purchase Of 0.42 Acres Of 
Property To Be Used As A Part Of A Proposed Alternate Access To The Recreational 
Fields To Be Constructed At The Former Altadena Valley Country Club  (Public 
Hearing) 

30. Ordinance Number 2627 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Operation Of Transportation 
Network Companies (TNCs) In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama To Provide For The 
Permitting, Rules And Regulations For Said TNCs And To Provide Penalties For 
Violation Thereof  (Public Hearing) 

New Business  

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

31. Ordinance Number 2625 - An Ordinance Declaring Certain Real Property As Surplus 
And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase And Sale 
Agreement For Said Property  (Public Hearing, postponed to January 11, 2016) 

32. Resolution Number 4783 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Fund 
$599,000 For SHAC, Phase II, In Coordination With The Vestavia Hills Park And 
Recreation Foundation 

33. Citizens Comments  
34. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 14, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a work session on this date at 4:00 PM 
following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work 
session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce 
      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 

Rebecca Leavings City Clerk 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
 
 Mr. Downes gave an update on the effort toward a multijurisdictional agreement 
along Cahaba River Road with Mountain Brook, Birmingham, Jefferson County and 
Vestavia.  He showed a map delineating each jurisdiction and summarizing the work to 
be done in each area.  He stated that there are agreements on the agenda for presentation 
on December 28 concerning this request.  Anticipated cost estimates were shown which 
might be adjusted as the scope of work is detailed.  This MPO project, if it is pulled 
together, would be funded 80% by federal funds and the various municipalities would 
fund the remaining 20% at a pro-rata cost share. 
 
 There being no further business, work session adjourned at 4:56 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

DECEMBER 14, 2015 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 4:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  

      John Henley  
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Danny Rary, Police Chief 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Marvin Green, Dep. Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by Brian Davis, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by 
Boy Scouts from Troop 1, Gray Goodspeed and John Hulstrand.   
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 
• The Mayor stated that the television news networks had broadcast that the 

Council would be hearing a controversial zoning request tonight.  He stated that 
those reports were not correct and that public notice was given at the last meeting 
that item would not be presented to the City Council until late January. 

• Mr. Pierce welcomed Lee Higginbotham who was present representing the 
Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce. 

 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 2 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes reported the three strategies that were determined in the 
recommendations for the Park and Recreation programming and facilities.  He 
reported the improvement have been completed or will be occurring at Liberty 
Park, SHAC, Wald Park, Exchange field, etc., along with the proposed 
improvements to the Wald Park swimming pool that is on the agenda tonight.  

 
 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Henley thanked all individuals who helped with the annual Breakfast with 
Santa including Hopson and Henry Nance; Jim and Josh Losole; Will Yates; 
Kevin Tyus; Stephen Christie, Curtis Palmer; Tom Milldrum; Jeff, Harrison and 
Sydney Downes; Butch Zaragoza; Marshall Gilbert and Lily Henley.  He added 
that the VHHS Rockettes were there to lend a hand.   He stated this year was the 
biggest ever and they expect it to continue to grow. 

• The Mayor stated that the Christmas Parade in Liberty Park was a wonderful 
event.  He thanked the following individuals who assisted in planning:  Carol 
Adkins; Dee Kirkland; Millou Callahan; Karen Odle; Paige Hockman; and Katie 
Woodruff. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of November 16, 2016 (Work Session) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of November 16, 2015 

(Work Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – abstained Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of November 23, 2015 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Henley and 
second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – abstained  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of December 2, 2015 

(Work Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 3 
 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4770 
 
Resolution Number 4770 - A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Firearms For 

The Vestavia Hills Police Department  (Public Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4770 was by Mr. Ammons.  

Second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this was a request to allow the Police Department to 
purchase service weapons for the Department and charge the expense to confiscation 
funds. 
 
 Chief Rary explained the need for uniformity of weapons within the Department 
and the efforts over the year to get as close as possible.  He stated that with the 
accumulation of confiscation funds, the opportunity has come that uniform service 
weapons can be purchased for the Department which would also help with ammunition 
costs as well as “in house” maintenance. 
 

Discussion ensued as to whether or not the purchase of service weapons will be 
ongoing.  Chief Rary stated that they will purchase 100 firearms now, which will cover 
current and some future needs and will purchase later as needed.  This purchase is exempt 
from the bid law because state law regulates the cost of the firearm.   
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4772 
 
Resolution Number 4772 - A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Firearms For 

The Vestavia Hills Police Department  (Public Hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4772 was by Mr. Ammons.  

Second was by Mr. Henley. 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 4 
 

 
 Mr. Downes stated that the Meadowlawn Park stream restoration project was 
competitively bid, but the only bid that was received which was in excess of $650,000.  
He indicated it was high and it was decided to reject the bid and go negotiate a new price 
for the project with that sole bidder.  The new negotiated price is $452,690 which is 
within this request.  A funding summary showing the total funding, the FEMA buyout 
along with a grant from the Community Foundation of Greater Birmingham was shown 
to the Council.   
 

Discussion ensued indicating that the City is continuing to look for funding 
opportunities; moving the houses; drop of qualified bidders because of different factors 
involved in the bid including the smaller pool of contractors, liquidated damages for 
delay of completion, etc.  Most vendors prefer not to do these smaller projects.  Also, the 
Clean Water provisions within the funding required the contractors to show similar work 
which left the City with only 2 bidders qualified. 
 

Mr. Boone explained the law on Public Works bidding. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 Judith Linley, 4001 Dolly Ridge Road, asked if all the flooding of the area will be 
solved with this one project. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that it is intended to address as much as possible; however, it 
might not address all flooding depending on the rainfall in the coming years. 
 
 Robert Debuys, 3467 Mossbrook Lane, asked questions regarding the moving of 
the houses and the vendor moving them. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public 
hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4773 
 
Resolution Number 4773 – A Resolution Authorizing The Funding Of RMS 

Software Through New World From Special Fund 11 – Court And 
Corrections  (Public Hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4773 was by Mr. Ammons.  

Second was by Mr. Henley. 
 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 5 
 

 Mr. Downes explained that the New World software allows for a unified case 
system from incident reports to municipal court.  He stated that the software maintenance 
was funded through the General Fund in the past but it was later determined it should be 
through Special Funds.  It was split between two funds; however, after the budget was 
approved it was found that only half of it was actually budgeted.  This Resolution will 
allow the other half to be funded.    
 

Discussion ensued indicating that the City is continuing to look for funding 
opportunities; moving the houses; drop of qualified bidders because of different factors 
involved in the bid including the smaller pool of contractors, liquidated damages for 
delay of completion, etc.  Most vendors prefer not to do these smaller projects.  Also, the 
Clean Water provisions within the funding required the contractors to show similar work 
which left the City with only 2 bidders qualified. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried. 
 
 

NEW BUSINESS  

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4774 

 
Resolution Number 4774 – A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia 

Hills Library Board 
 
 Mayor Zaragoza stated that the Council had received four applications for the 
upcoming vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Library Board:  Jimmy Bartlett; Lucy M. Rose; 
Tonya Grico and David Harwell.  He indicated that the Council interviewed all but Mr. 
Harwell who was out of town.  The Mayor nominated that Jim Bartlett be appointed to 
the Board. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4774 and approve as amended to 

appoint Jim Bartlett was by Mr. Sharp.  Second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 6 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4775 
 
Resolution Number 4775 – A Resolution Appointing A Member To The Vestavia 

Hills Park And Recreation Board 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that the Council had received four applications for the 
upcoming vacancy on the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board:  Donald Rubin; 
Kight Jones; Earl H. Lawson, Jr.; and Craig P. Rogers.  He indicated that the Council 
interviewed all of them and then nominated Earl H. Lawson, Jr. to be appointed to the 
Board. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4775 and approve as amended to 

appoint Earl H. Lawson, Jr. was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by Mr. 
Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4776 
 
Resolution Number 4776 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Fire Department 

Uniforms 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4776 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Chief St. John explained that bids were invited for Fire Department uniforms.  He 
explained that different bids were sent this time to allow for new NOMEX uniforms 
which is something that the Department has never has been able to purchase.  He stated 
that this first request is for the normal polyester uniforms, belts, etc., uniforms.  He 
explained the difference in the bids and the types of uniforms. 
 
 Chief St. John indicated he has reviewed the bids received and has recommended 
awarding the bid to McCain Uniforms. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 7 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4777 
 
Resolution Number 4777 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Nomex Fire 

Department Uniforms 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4777 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Chief St. John explained that these NOMEX uniforms are more durable than the 
regular ones being used now and is a new type of uniform in this area that was 
inaccessible until now.  He stated the Department reviewed the bids to see if it might be 
advantageous to lease the uniforms but found it is better to purchase. 
 
 Discussion about the pricing and the sizes of the unforms ensued. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mr. Sharp – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza –yes   Motion carried 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
None. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
December 28, 2015 at 5 PM. 

• Ordinance Number 2611 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3579 Valley Circle, Lot 
18, Block 1, Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; P. David 
Deusner, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2612 – Rezoning - 3579 Valley Circle, Lot 18, Block 1, 
Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition; Rezone From Jefferson 
County R-1 To Vestavia Hills, R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; P. 
David Deusner, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2613 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3527 Valley Circle, Lot 
5, Block 1, Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Paul and 
Katie Harbinson, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2614 – Rezoning - 3527 Valley Circle, Lot 5, Block 1, 
Amended Map Of Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector; Rezone From Jefferson 
County R-1 To Vestavia Hills, R-2, Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Paul 
and Katie Harbinson, Owners  (Public Hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 8 
 

• Ordinance Number 2615 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2615 Alta Vista Circle; 
Lot 6, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector; Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owners  
(Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2616 – Rezoning - 2615 Alta Vista Circle; Lot 6, Altadena 
Valley Country Club Sector; Rezone From Shelby County E-1 To Vestavia Hills 
E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Bradley And Kelly Belew, Owners  
(Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2617 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2700 Alta View Drive; 
Brad and Molly Ainsworth, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2618 – Rezoning – 2700 Alta View Drive; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For Annexation; 
Brad And Molly Ainsworth, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2619 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4670 Caldwell Mill 
Road; Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2620 – Rezoning – 4670 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2621 – Rezoning – 3112 Blue Lake Drive, Lot 5, Topfield 
Subdivision; Rezone From Vestavia Hills R-1 (Residential) To Vestavia Hills O-
1 (Office District); HD Holdings, LLC, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2622 – Conditional Use Approval – 2565 Mountain Woods 
Drive; Lot 16, Mountain Woods Park, 2nd Addition; Conditional Use For The 
Housing And Raising Of Six (6) Urban Hens With Conditions; April And Ginger 
Aaron-Brush, Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2623 – Conditional Use Approval – 1793 Shades Crest Road; 
Conditional Use Approval For Construction Of A Guest House On Said Property 
With Conditions; David B. Delozier, Owner  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2624 – Conditional Use Approval – 1836 And 1842 Shades 
Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, Bradshaw Addition To Vestavia; Conditional Use 
Approval To Construct Front Security Fence/Gates; Phylis And John Smith, 
Owners  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2625 - An Ordinance Declaring Certain Real Property As 
Surplus And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase 
And Sale Agreement For Said Property  (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4778 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Repair The Wald Park Swimming Pool  (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4779 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() 
[Proj. Ref. No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba 
River Road From SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For 
Preliminary Engineering  (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4780 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() 
[Proj. Ref. No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba 
River Road From SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For Right-Of-
Way Agreement  (Public Hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
 December 14, 2015 

Page 9 
 

• Resolution Number 4781 – A Resolution For Project Number STPBH-3715() 
[Proj. Ref. No. 100063244] Roadway And Intersection Improvements On Cahaba 
River Road From SR-38 (US-280) To Key Drive In Vestavia Hills For Roadway 
And Intersection Improvements  (Public Hearing) 

• Resolution Number 4782 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver Multijurisdictional Agreements With The Cities Of 
Mountain Brook, Birmingham And Jefferson County For Project Number 
STPBH-3715() Cahaba River Road From SR-38 (US 280) To Key Drive  (Public 
Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2626 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver A General Sales Contract For The Purchase Of 
0.42 Acres Of Property To Be Used As A Part Of A Proposed Alternate Access 
To The Recreational Fields To Be Constructed At The Former Altadena Valley 
Country Club  (Public Hearing) 

• Ordinance Number 2627 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Operation Of 
Transportation Network Companies (Tncs) In The City Of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama To Provide For The Permitting, Rules And Regulations For Said Tncs 
And To Provide Penalties For Violation Thereof  (Public Hearing) 

 
CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor for citizen comments. 
 

• None. 
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  

Meeting adjourned at 5:59 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2611 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2611 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of September, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3579 Valley Circle 
Lot 18, Block 1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

P. David Deusner, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2611 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2611 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2611 
Page 3 

 

 
 



















Ordinance Number 2612 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2612 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia 

Hills R-2:  

3579 Valley Circle 
Lot 18, Blk 1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

P. David Deusner, Owner 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2612 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2612 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2612 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1115-62 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2720 Alta View Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Brad & Molly Ainsworth 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
9/14/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2720. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 3579 Valley 
Circle. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 







Ordinance Number 2613 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2613 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of September, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3527 Valley Circle 
Lot 5, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, Second Sector 

Paul and Katie Harbison, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2613 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2613 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2613 
Page 3 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2614 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2614 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia 

Hills R-2:  

3527 Valley Circle 
Lot 5, Blk 1, Amended Map of Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Addition 

Paul and Katie Harbison, Owners 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2614 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2614 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2614 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1115-59 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3527 Valley Cir. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Paul & Katie Harbison 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

9/14/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2587. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 3527 Valley 
Circle. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  
Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 







Ordinance Number 2615 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2615 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of September, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2615 Alta Vista Circle 
Lot 6, Altadena Valley Country Club Sector 

Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2615 
Page 2 

 
 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2615 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2615 
Page 3 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2616 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2616 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM SHELBY COUNTY E-
1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Shelby County E-1 to Vestavia 

Hills E-2:  

2615 Alta Vista Circle 
Lot 6, Altadena Valley Country Club Estates 

Bradley and Kelly Belew, Owners 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2616 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2616 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2616 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1115-61 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Shelby County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2615 Alta Vista Circle. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Bradley & Kelly Belew 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
9/14/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2615. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2615 Alta 
Vista Circle from Shelby County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 







Ordinance Number 2617 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2617 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of September, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2720 Alta View Drive 
Brad and Molly Ainsworth, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in the SW ¼ of Section 27 and the SE ¼ of 
Section 28, Township, 18 South, Range 2 West, being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 28, and 
run in a southerly direction along the east line of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 
Section 28, a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence 112 degrees 50’ to 
the right in a northwesterly direction a distance of 165.20 feet to the point 
of beginning; thence continuing along the last described course a distance 
of 35.34 feet to a point; thence 7 degrees 53’ to the right in a northwesterly 



Ordinance Number 2617 
Page 2 

 
direction, a distance of 283.32 feet to a point on the rear line of Lot 16, 
Altadena Estates; thence 108 degrees 24’ 30” to the right in a northeasterly 
direction along the rear line of Lots 16 & 15, Altadena Estates and its 
prolongation thereof a distance of 588.51 feet to a point; thence 109 
degrees 31’ to the right in a southeasterly direction a distance of 190.00 
feet to a point; thence 66 degrees 51’ to the right in a southwesterly 
direction a distance of 163.77 feet to a point; thence 13 degrees 58’ to the 
left in a southwesterly direction a distance of 125.65 feet to the point of 
curve (PC) of a curve to the left having a radius of 202.63 feet, and a 
central angle of 22 degrees, 20’; thence along the arc of said curve to the 
left a distance of 78.98 feet to the point of reverse curve, (PRC), thence 
along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 187.11 feet, and a 
central angle of 24 degrees 08’ for a distance of 78.81 feet to the point of 
beginning. 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2617 
Page 3 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2617 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2617 
Page 4 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2618 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2618 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia 

Hills E-2:  

2720 Alta View Drive 
Brad and Molly Ainsworth, Owners 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 
A parcel of land situated in the SW ¼ of Section 27 and the SE ¼ of 
Section 28, Township, 18 South, Range 2 West, being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 28, and 
run in a southerly direction along the east line of the SE ¼ of the SE ¼ of 
Section 28, a distance of 100.00 feet to a point; thence 112 degrees 50’ to 
the right in a northwesterly direction a distance of 165.20 feet to the point 
of beginning; thence continuing along the last described course a distance 
of 35.34 feet to a point; thence 7 degrees 53’ to the right in a northwesterly 
direction, a distance of 283.32 feet to a point on the rear line of Lot 16, 
Altadena Estates; thence 108 degrees 24’ 30” to the right in a northeasterly 
direction along the rear line of Lots 16 & 15, Altadena Estates and its 
prolongation thereof a distance of 588.51 feet to a point; thence 109 
degrees 31’ to the right in a southeasterly direction a distance of 190.00 
feet to a point; thence 66 degrees 51’ to the right in a southwesterly 
direction a distance of 163.77 feet to a point; thence 13 degrees 58’ to the 
left in a southwesterly direction a distance of 125.65 feet to the point of 
curve (PC) of a curve to the left having a radius of 202.63 feet, and a 
central angle of 22 degrees, 20’; thence along the arc of said curve to the 
left a distance of 78.98 feet to the point of reverse curve, (PRC), thence 
along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 187.11 feet, and a 
central angle of 24 degrees 08’ for a distance of 78.81 feet to the point of 
beginning. 

 



Ordinance Number 2618 
Page 2 

 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2618 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2618 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1115-62 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2720 Alta View Dr. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Brad & Molly Ainsworth 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
9/14/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2589. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2720 Alta View 
Dr. from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 







Ordinance Number 2619 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2619 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 14th day of September, 2015, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4670 Caldwell Mill Road 
Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Begin at the SW corner of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West; thence run East along the South line of said 1/4-
1/4 line for a distance of 650.87 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
continue along the last described course for a distance of 390.47 feet to the 
centerline of Old Caldwell Mill Road; thence turn 100 degrees 14’ 23” left 
and run Northwesterly along centerline of said Old Caldwell Road for 
distance of 121.69 feet; thence turn 89 degrees 01’ 18” left and run 
Southwesterly for a distance of 146.88 feet; thence turn 12 degrees 54’ 
02” right and run Northwesterly for a distance of 175.76 feet to the 
centerline of a branch; thence turn 61 degrees 58’ 34” left and run 



Ordinance Number 2619 
Page 2 

 
Southwesterly along centerline of said branch for a distance of 29.13 feet; 
thence turn 9 degrees 45’ 11” left and continue Southwesterly along 
centerline of said branch a distance of 88.89 feet to the Point of 
Beginning.  Situated in Jefferson County Alabama (Birmingham 
Division). 

 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2619 
Page 3 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2619 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2619 
Page 4 

 

 



















Ordinance Number 2620 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2620 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia 

Hills R-1:  

4670 Caldwell Mill Road 
Brooks and Elisabeth Souders, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Begin at the SW corner of the SE ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 34, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West; thence run East along the South line of said 1/4-
1/4 line for a distance of 650.87 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
continue along the last described course for a distance of 390.47 feet to the 
centerline of Old Caldwell Mill Road; thence turn 100 degrees 14’ 23” left 
and run Northwesterly along centerline of said Old Caldwell Road for 
distance of 121.69 feet; thence turn 89 degrees 01’ 18” left and run 
Southwesterly for a distance of 146.88 feet; thence turn 12 degrees 54’ 
02” right and run Northwesterly for a distance of 175.76 feet to the 
centerline of a branch; thence turn 61 degrees 58’ 34” left and run 
Southwesterly along centerline of said branch for a distance of 29.13 feet; 
thence turn 9 degrees 45’ 11” left and continue Southwesterly along 
centerline of said branch a distance of 88.89 feet to the Point of 
Beginning.  Situated in Jefferson County Alabama (Birmingham 
Division). 
 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  



Ordinance Number 2620 
Page 2 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2620 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordinance Number 2620 
Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

• CASE:  P-1115-64 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  4670 Caldwell Mill Rd. 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Brooks Sounders 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
9/14/15 with the passage of Ordinance 2591. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 4670 Caldwell 
Mill Rd. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1  For The Purpose Of Annexation.  
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 







Ordinance Number 2621 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2621 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 
16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE 
THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY 
FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

3112 Blue Lake Drive 
Lot 5, Topfield Subdivision 

HD Holdings, LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that said zoning is conditioned upon successful 

recordation of a resurvey to allow shared parking between properties as shown in 

attached detail. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2621 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2621 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P

 

r 2621 
Page 3 

 



SHEET

DRAWING

NEW OFFICE BUILDING FOR:

HARRIS DOYLE HOMES
3112 BLUE LAKE DRIVE,   VESTAVIA HILLS,   ALABAMA, 35243


























R

S EG I STER
E

D
A

R
CH

ITECT

TATE
O

F
A

L
A

BAMA

PRELIMINARY STAFF MEETING REVIEW 10/05/15

DATES

A001
REZONING REQUEST SITE PLAN
VICINITY SKETCH

0'
40

'
20

'
60

'

N



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015

� CASE:  P-1115-66

� REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills R-1 Vestavia Hills O-1

� ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3112 Blue Lake Dr.

� APPLICANT/OWNER: HD Holdings, LLC

� REPRESNTING AGENT: Chad Bryant

� GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is on Blue Lake Dr., and immediately adjacent 
to another property zoned O-1. Applicant is seeking rezoning to build an office 
building with two tenants. Tenant 1 would be in two story building and be 4,000 
square feet. Tenant 2 would be 1 story 28,000 square feet. The building setbacks and 
buffering meet the minimum for an O-1 zoning. A preliminary landscape plan is 
attached.
The lot and building will be under the same ownership as the lot to the south and will 
share parking and driveway access. Both lots will be resurveyed into 1 lot at the 
completion of zoning.

� CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for retail/mixed use. Additionally, the property 
directly to the south at 3108 Blue Lake Dr. is already zoned O-1.

� STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  Zoning contingent on resurvey being 
approved and recorded.

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 



2

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of Rezoning for 
3112 Blue Lake Dr. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills O-1 For The Purpose Of Retail 
And Office Development with the following condition:

1. Rezoning contingent upon resurvey being approved 
and recorded.

Second was by Mr. Wolfe. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Burrell – yes
Mr. Gilchrist – yes Mr. Sharp – yes
Mr. Wolfe – yes Mr. Visintainer – yes 
Mr. Brooks – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion carried.













Ordinance Number 2622 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2622 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF RAISING AND 
HOUSING URBAN HENS 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on October 5, 2015, April and Ginger Aaron-Brush submitted an 

application for conditional use approval to raise a maximum of six (6) hens on their 

property located at 2565 Mountain Woods Drive, Lot 16, Mountain Woods Park, 2nd 

Addition, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at at 2565 Mountain Woods Drive, Lot 16, 

Mountain Woods Park, 2nd Addition is presently zoned Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium 

density residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an R-2 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of November 12, 2015 voted to recommend approval of the request as presented, 

with certain stipulations as detailed below: 

1. No more than six (6) hens may be allowed on property at any time;  

2. Coop shall be permanent and not relocated on the property;  

3. No roosters may be kept on premises;  

4. Hens and/or eggs shall not be used for commercial purposes and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated October 5, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2622. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for April and Ginger Aaron-

Brush, for use of the property located at 2565 Mountain Woods Drive, Lot 16, 



Ordinance Number 2622 
Page 2 

 
Mountain Woods Park, 2nd Addition to raise and house chickens with the 

following conditions: 

a. No more than six (6) hens may be allowed on property at any time; 

b. Coop shall be permanent and not relocated on the property; 

c. No roosters may be kept on premises; 

d. Hens and/or eggs shall not be used for commercial purposes and 

2. This conditional use approval is location and owner specific and if  April and 

Ginger Aaron-Brush shall ever vacate the premises said conditional use shall 

be considered null and void; 

3. If April or Ginger Aaron-Brush vacate the conditional use by not raising any 

hens for a period of more than one (1) year, said conditional use is considered 

null and void; and 

4. If April or Ginger Aaron-Brush experiences any predators lured by said hens, 

they shall notify the Vestavia Hills Police Department immediately. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2622 
Page 3 

 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2622 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 

  



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-1115-63 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for six backyard chickens 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2565 Mountain Woods Dr. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  April & Ginger Aaron-Brush 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:   

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicants seek to raise up to six urban hens in 

their back yard in a permanent coop. The applicants originally had covenants 
preventing fowl but had that restriction removed. A site plan and nullification 
agreement is attached. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission add the 
following conditions: 
A. No more than six (6) hens may be allowed; 
B. Coop must be permanent; 
C. No roosters may be kept; 
D. Hens or eggs may not be used for commercial purposes. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed this application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted.  

 



 2 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

 
MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval for For Six (6) Backyard Chickens Located At 2565 Mountain Woods Dr. with the 
following conditions: 

1. No more than six (6) hens may be allowed; 
2. Coop must be permanent and screened from the 

road; 
3. No roosters may be kept; and 
4. Hens or eggs may not be used for commercial 

purposes 
Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 
 



P1115-63//29-25-4-2-40 
2565 Mountain Woods Drive 
Condition Use for raising 6 chickens 
April & Ginger Aaron-Brush 
R2 	 ry OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

P&Z Application 

Page 4 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

t
CZ,
"'" 

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regulartr on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambeal  at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or cPditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be sug'nitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working days pr 1%  to the , 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property) 

NAME: 	April and Ginger Aaron-Brush 

ADDRESS: 2565 Mountain Woods Drive 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:   

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above) 
same CJ1 

  

PHONE NUMBER: Home 205-567-6991 1 Office 205-567-69111 

  

    

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT:  nia  



My Commission 
7xolres 8/4/18 

Notary Public 

My comLA 
 

fission expires 
day of 	iLA.5 	, 

III. ACTION REQUESTED 

P1115-63//29-25-4-2-40 
2565 Mountain Woods Drive 
Condition Use for raising 6 chickens 
April & Ginger Aaron-Brush 
R2 

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
to Section 	 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

Current Zoning of Property: 	2  

Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: 

no roosters 

raising backyard (6) chickens 

 

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request** 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

Lot 16, according to the Survey of Second Addition to Mountain Woods Park, as recorded 

in Map Book 38, page 63, in the Probate Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Property size:  \ 2 crS 	feet X  30.1 	feet. Acres: 	6 -t  

V. INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

AasAtipo  

Owner Signature/Date 

Given under my hand and seal 
this  5-'6'  day of  64.4-0  v,  20  157  

Representing Agent (if any)/date 

10-5-15 



 

 



P1115-63/129-25-4-2-40 
2565 Mountain Woods Drive 
Condition Use for raising 6 chickens 
April & Ginger Aaron-Brush 
R2 

Coop 

House  
Concrete 

Pad 

riveway 

Mountain Woods Drive 



Monumen t  

_ _4305 .93e_ 

Scale: l"=50 1  

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

I, J.M. Keel, a Registered Surveyor of Birmingham. 
Alabama, hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct map 

' according to the map and survey of 2nd. Addition to Mountain - -- 
Ytoods Park as recorded in Map Book 38, Page 63, 

in the Probate Office of Jefferson County 
that the building 	now erected on said lot is within the lines 
of same; that the picture shows the residence erected thereon; 
that there are no encroachments from adjoining properties and that 

the correct street address is. 
No e 	Mountain Woods Drive,hades Mountain,R.F.D.,Wham, Alabama 

According to my survey this the 2,nd day of 	November, 	, 19 

Mk. JOE kiINUM, ATTY. 
Charles Kessler(Besidence). 

Job No. 9959 F . 	Keel, Red. No. 610 
.ne 4-1284 



45011romneNtOt 
IP 

11111 iu 

 

11111 

    

     

       

        

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

2015 005000997560 	/2 
Bk: LR201515 Pg:25211 
Jefferson County,Alabama 
I certify this instrument filed on: 
10/05/2015 03:43:03 PM REST 
Judge of Probate- Alan L. King 

NULLIFICATION OF RESTRICTON 

Come the undersigned, a majority of the owners of lots 
in the Survey of the Second Addition to Mountain Woods Park, 
a map of which is recorded in Map Book 38, Page 63, in the 
Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama 
and vote to change Restriction 8, Adoption of Restrictions, 
recorded in Deed Book 5075 at page 416, in the Office of the 
Judge of Probate for Jefferson County, to whatever extent it 
may continue to exist after abandonment, by voiding said 
Restriction 8 entirely, and authorize recording of this vote 
in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, indicating affirmative votes in favor of its 
nullification by signatures below, which attest not only to 
nullification, but also to ownership of lots designated with 
signatures below. The undersigned appoint April S. Aaron-
Brush, co-owner of Lot 16, according to the Survey of. Second 
Addition to Mountain Woods Park'to canvass and record votes 
until a majority of the owners of lots in the Survey of the 
Second Addition to Mountain Woods Park has been attained and 

•record same with her verification thereof. 

142 . 
—.APPRIPME.e& 

of No.  RO Date:  1-14-13  
Lot No.  13  Date:  -  

Lot No.  f  Date:  c:( -1 q  
Lot No.  IS  Date:  el- ci 5`  

Lot No.  es--  Date:  9-1,  

Lot No.  Date:  
Lot No.  /, 	Date: 	.?-,1,3 -/J- 
Lot No.,3t  Date: 	F-2 ? - /  
Lot No .  r  Date :  - Z 7 /3  
Lot No.  /  Date:  /  
Lot No.  „  Date:  c-,,;24,-/S--  
Lot No. D.). Date:  q--1- 15  
Lot No. —zr Date:  51 -2 -7-/S- 
Lot No.  CJ  Date: 	  
Lot No.  j1 	Date:  ci-21 - 1S  
Lot No. 	 Date:  7--33 - /E- 
Lot No.  2-1"  Date:  /r.) 	-  
Lot No.  - 	Date:  /0./ f  
Lot No. 	 Date: 	  
Lot No. 	Date: 

P1115-63//29 -25-4-2-40  

2565 Mountain Woods Drive 
Condition Use for raising 6 chickens 
April & Ginger Aaron-Brush 

R2 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, 
personally appeared April S. Aaron-Brush who, being known to 
me and informed of the contents hereof and first duly sworn, 
deposes and says that she is the same April S. Aaron-Brush 
described by the above captioned instrument, Nullification 
of Restriction, and voluntarily states that on the dates 
entered above she canvassed and obtained from'the majority 
of then-owners of the lots indicated by their signatures 
that it was agreed'by their votes, so indicated, that the 
entirety of Restriction 8, Adoption of Restrictions, 
recorded in Deed Book 5075, at page 416 in the Office of the 
Judge of Probate for Jefferson County, to whatever extent it 
may continue to exist after abandonment, is nullified. 

c'r`rr, \--4 ;n v.> 	c, PO-( IC 2n 4 FJ . 

April S. Aaron-Brush 

Sworn and subscribed before 
me, a Notary Public in and 
for saidh County and State 
this 5-  day of CrI0bCr  
2015. 

`haw b6. Wpitornai)  
Notary Public 

My commission expires: 

()/<9<gbg  

20151005000997560 	2/2 
Bk: LR201515 Pg:25211 
Jefferson County,Alabama 
10/05/2015 03:4303 PM REST 
Fee - $19.00 

Total of Fees and Taxes-$19 00 
SCOTTK 

• 

2 



Figure 20: Columbiana Road 
Land Use Analysis 

Neighborhood - primarily low- / medium density single-family residential 

areas with higher &money neat village cenrcr(s). Other sirs may include 
schools, places at worship, ftUtitl0fili areas, and open space. 

Village Center • mixed use CCMCf3 with highest densities in sore areas. 
Min of uses should mclusie serail and smote businesses, profess...mai othim. 
high &miry rmyknnal areas, mantunons. recreation areas, and public spaces. 

Commercial Core  •  primarily high density. retail and seroce business 

arms with pi-oft-mond offers and muirkannly mailer:cm on upper OA.") in 
on penphery Other uses may Include nuntunons and public space. 

Gateways and Nodes U•trwar ■ are • ntr yurap. into the community of 

village enhanced with consistent ...gnaw, landscaping, aryl oche. element.. 
Nodes ate Sitef, sashes transit stops, whrtr public spasm, signage. and other 
public resign elementa should he considered. 

Professional Offices • primarily pngessymal office toes. Density should 
vary according to surroundings. Other mes may trichnle retail and services 
(supporong offices and employee.), places idessollgs, public spaces, and open spice. 

Recreation and Open Space public and private recreation (actin. and 
preserved natural sputa. Recreation facilities may be scam. pmane or cemhmncd. Open 
spaces are areas preserved on a natural scare and may Include pumice recreational soca 

Trailbeasia Tradheads arc public site along a trail, where bike racks, seating. 
parking, and public amenities are provided foe trail user. 

Schools School facilities admitustrated by the Vesta.. Hills School System. 

SOO 	0 

■ 
I000 	Ink` 1.. 

ti 

highway 
commercial 11. • 

•

• 

•■•• 

„..•• • •411111% ..  

/ HOMEWOOD 

M..— • _ 

a tew 
• ' 	 • 

■ 
/ 

f .' 

mixed 
neighb 

re 

HOOVER 

high 
density 

residential 

Berry 
Middle i 
School 

P.,. 	tow . 1 I .1 

low and 
medium 
density 

residential 

V 1 

105 	 l 'estavia Hills Comprehensive Plan 



Ordinance Number 2623 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2623 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF 
CONSTRUCTION OF A GUEST HOUSE 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 30, 2015, David B. Delozier submitted an application 

for conditional use approval to construct a guest house on his property located at 1793 

Shades Crest Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 1793 Shades Crest Road is presently zoned 

Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an R-2 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of November 12, 2015 voted to recommend approval of the request as presented, 

with certain stipulations as detailed below: 

1. Guest House cannot be leased separately nor utilized by any individual of a 

different family as defined in the City’s Zoning Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated September 30, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2623. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for David Delozier, for 

construction of a guest house at 1793 Shades Crest Road with the following 

conditions: 

a. Guest House cannot be leased separately nor utilized by any individual 

of a different family as defined in the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 



Ordinance Number 2623 
Page 2 

 
b. If David Delozier vacates the conditional use by significant destruction 

and/or deterioration of the house and no reconstruction for a period of  

one (1) year, said conditional use is considered null and void. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2623 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 

  



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-1115-58 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for a guest house 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  David B. Delozier 

 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:   

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicant seeks to rebuild a burned guest house in 

rear of the property. The applicants originally received a variance for the same 
request in May of 2007. However, the BZA approval has lapsed and the zoning code 
has changed. Guest houses are a permitted use in an E-2 zoning. A site and building 
plan is attached. 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 

the Comprehensive Plan for medium density residential provided the guest house is 
not leased separately from the main structure. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  I recommend the Commission add the 
following conditions: 
A. Guest house cannot be separately leased. 
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed this application and have no issues 
with this request. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted.  
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 



 2 

MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval for a guest house at 1793 Shades Crest Rd. with the following conditions: 

1. Guest house cannot be separately leased. 
Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 
 
 



P1115-58//29-25-1-3-7 
1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
Conditional Use to build guest home 
David Delozier 	R2 P&Z Application 

Page 4 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

APPLICATION 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

I. 	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION:  

(1) The Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission meets regularly on the 
second Thursday of each month at 6:00 PM in Council Chambers at the 
Municipal Center. 

(2) All materials and information relating to a zoning/rezoning request or conditional 
use approval before the Planning and Zoning Commission must be submitted to 
the Office of the City Clerk no later than 25 working days prior to the 
scheduled meeting at which it shall be considered. All information relating to 
Preliminary Map approvals must be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk no 
later than 20 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which is shall be considered. 
All information relating to Final Map approvals must be submitted to the Office 
of the City Clerk no later than 15 days prior to the scheduled meeting at which it 
is to be considered. 

(3) This application must be filled out in its entirety complete with zip codes. 
(4) All applicable fees shall accompany this application prior to its being considered 

complete. Fees include an application fee of $100.00 along with applicable 
postage per property owner to be notified for Commission meeting. Fees may 
also include notification fees for City Council meeting and publication fees which 
will be billed to applicant at a later date.  **No permits will be issued until all fees 
have been paid. 

(5) Appropriate plats and maps with proper legal description shall accompany this 
application. Please refer to attached checklist. 

II. 	APPLICANT INFORMATION: (owner of property,) 

NAME: 
	

DAVID Is.  

ADDRESS: 1793 S4-1A D ✓s ckes-T- 

VeSTAU IP 141t.t,s, AL -35 /2 1(p 

MAILING ADDRESS (if different from above)  	 NA 
 

PHONE NUMBER: Home  (1-05)  822 -14 27  0 	Office 

NAME OF REPRESENTING ATTORNEY OR OTHER AGENT: 

26G 36 'is I co 
co 

V 



Current Zoning of Property: 

Requested Conditional use For the intended purpose of: 

Given u 	r my hand an seal 
this 36 	day of 

P1115-58//29-25-1-3-7 
1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
Conditional Use to build guest home 
David Delozier 	R2 

P&Z Application 

Page 5 

HI. ACTION REQUESTED 

Request that the above described property be approved conditional use approval pursuant 
to Section 	 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code. 

(Example: From "VH R-1" to "VH 0-1" for office building) 
**if additional information is needed, please attached full description of request * 

IV. PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 	(address, legal, etc.) 

Property size: 

 

feet X 	feet. Acres: 	  

    

V. INFORMATION 	ATTACHED: 

Attached Checklist complete with all required information. 

Application fees submitted. 

VI. I do hereby declare the above statements are true and that I, the owner, and/or my duly 
appointed representative will be at the scheduled hearing. 

Representing Agent (if any)/date Owner Signa ure/Date 

Notaryfublic 	My Commission Expires 
My commission expires 	November 18, 2018 
dayof•.:1  • .i' 	, 20 	. 

„., 	 - 	 .... . 



1 

L 

David. B. And Catherine DeLozier, 1793 Shades Crest Road, Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 — (205) 822-4270 " (205)368-4516 cell 

Original guest house as it appeared in April 2007 

when we purchased it; it was approved for demoli-

tion and reconstruction by the Zoning Board in 

May 2007 

The foundation and chimney as they appear today, 

September 2015 

FRONT ELEVATION  

Proposed structure to occupy identical footprint of 

original guest house, using existing foundation and 

chimney 

P1115-58/129-25-1-3-7 
1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
Conditional Use to build guest home 
David Delozier 	R2 

September 30, 2015 



P1115-58//29-25-1-3-7 
1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
Conditional Use to build guest home 
David Delozier 	R2 



Top 

top or 	. 
up  or 

0 BARRY DELOZIER (205) 368-4516 - BARRNIOSOWOWME.COM  

STUDIO/GUEST HOUSE 

1793 SHADES CREST ROAD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216 

FRONT ELEVATION  

LET ELEVATION 

REAR ELEVATION 

LT  

OMM P■M IIIMIIIMM1111131■11 MIMEO. 1 • 

•••■••=1=1■•••11==.1111111•11= 
-•••=1.111•1MMININIMMI=1,111.1• 

■■••■ 

RIGHT ELEVATION 

P1115-58//29-25-1-3-7 
1793 Shades Crest Rd. 
Conditional Use to build guest home 
David Delozier 	R2 



Ordinance Number 2624 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2624 
 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR THE INTENDED PURPOSE OF 
CONSTRUCTION OF FRONT SECURITY FENCE/SECURITY 
GATE 

 
 WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

 WHEREAS, on October 1, 2015, Phylis and John Smith submitted an application 

for conditional use approval to construct a front security fence and security gates on their 

properties located at 1836 and 1842 Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, Bradshaw Addition 

to Vestavia, Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, the properties located at 1836 and 1842 Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 

& 2, Bradshaw Addition to Vestavia is presently zoned Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density 

residential district); and 

 WHEREAS, Table 5 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth the permissible 

uses within an R-2 classification; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of November 12, 2015 voted to recommend approval of the request as presented, 

with certain stipulations as detailed below: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Phylis and John Smith, for 

construction of front security fence and security gates at 1836 and 1842 

Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, Bradshaw Addition to Vestavia with the 

following conditions: 

a. That the residential properties must be a lot of record recorded in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate; and 

b. The fence and gates shall be construed so as to be open, ornamental 

and decorative in style and constructed of finished stone, masonry 

and/or metal.  Said fencing located within the front yard setback shall 

exclude wood and/or chain link fencing; and 



Ordinance Number 2624 
Page 2 

 
c. Said fencing shall be located a minimum of 2’ inside the front lot line 

of a minimum of 5’ from any public improvements, within the right-

of-way whichever is greater.  Said location shall be approved by the 

City Planner and/or City Engineer in order to mitigate adverse effects 

to the subject or adjacent properties.  NOTE:  All public 

improvements, including utilities, shall be designated on required 

drawings in the form of a survey and certified by an engineer and/or 

surveyor licensed by the State of Alabama; and 

d. Said security gate shall be set back a minimum of 40’ from the edge of 

pavement or at least 2’ inside the private property line, whichever is 

greater; and 

e. A Knox switch/switches shall be installed and the gate shall be a 

proper width in order to allow access for emergency vehicles and shall 

be approved by the Fire Marshal prior to permitting; and 

f. If the owner of either 1836 and 1842 Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, 

Bradshaw Addition to Vestavia vacates the conditional use by tearing 

down and not reconstructing said fence/gates for a period of more than 

one (1) year, said conditional use is considered null and void; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated October 1, 2015 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2624. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

2. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for Phylis and John Smith, for 

construction of front security fence and security gates at 1836 and 1842 

Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, Bradshaw Addition to Vestavia with the 

following conditions: 

g. That the residential properties must be a lot of record recorded in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate; and 

h. The fence and gates shall be constructed so as to be open, ornamental 

and decorative in style and constructed of finished stone, masonry 



Ordinance Number 2624 
Page 3 

 
and/or metal.  Said fencing located within the front yard setback shall 

exclude wood and/or chain link fencing; and 

i. Said fencing shall be located a minimum of 2’ inside the front lot line 

of a minimum of 5’ from any public improvements, within the right-

of-way, whichever is greater.  Said location shall be approved by the 

City Planner and/or City Engineer in order to mitigate adverse effects 

to the subject or adjacent properties.  NOTE:  All public 

improvements, including utilities, shall be designated on required 

drawings in the form of a survey and certified by an engineer and/or 

surveyor licensed by the State of Alabama; and 

j. Said security gate shall be set back minimum 40’ from the edge of 

pavement or at least 2’ inside the private property line, whichever is 

greater; and 

k. A Knox switch/switches shall be installed and gate shall be a proper 

width in order to allow access for emergency vehicles and shall be 

approved by the Fire Marshal prior to permitting; and 

l. If the owner of either 1836 and 1842 Shades Crest Road; Lots 1 & 2, 

Bradshaw Addition to Vestavia vacates the conditional use by tearing 

down and not reconstructing said fence/gates for a period of more than 

one (1) year, said conditional use is considered null and void.  

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2624 
Page 4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2624 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official 
records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 

  



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     NOVEMBER 12, 2015 
 

 
• CASE:  P-1115-65 

 
• REQUESTED ACTION:   Conditional Use Approval for For A Fence With Gates 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  1836 & 1842 Shades Crest Rd. 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Phylis C. Smith and John Taylor Smith 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  The applicants are seeking to build a gated fence along 

two lots on Shades Crest Rd. Applicant is requesting the fence for additional security. 
They have attached an explanation letter and site plans. 
 
The zoning ordinance requires that lots must meet the following conditions: 
a. The residential property must be a lot of record recorded in the Office of the Judge 
of Probate; and 
b. The recorded lot must consist of a minimum one (1) acre of property; and 
c. The primary residential unit constructed upon the property must be located a 
minimum 100' from the front lot line; and 
d. The fence and gate shall be constructed so as to be open, ornamental and 
decorative in style and constructed of finished stone, masonry and/or metal. Said 
fencing located within the front yard setback shall exclude wood and/or chain link 
fencing; and 
e. Said fencing shall be located a minimum of 2' inside the front lot line or a 
minimum of 5' from any public improvements, within the right-of-way, whichever is 
greater. Said location shall be approved by the City Planner and/or City Engineer in 
order to mitigate adverse effects to the subject or adjacent properties. NOTE: All 
public improvements, including utilities, shall be designated on required drawings in 
the form of a survey and certified by an Engineer and/or Surveyor licensed by the 
State of Alabama; and 
f. Said security gate shall be set back minimum 40' from the edge of pavement or at 
least 2' inside of the private property line, whichever is greater; and 
g. A Knox switch/switches shall be installed and gate shall be at proper width in order 
to allow access for emergency vehicles and shall be approved by Fire Marshall prior 
to permitting. 
 
Lot 1 fails to meet the requirement for requirement “c” and Lot 2 fails to meet the 
requirement for “b”. All other requirements must be met. 
 
The property is zoned R-1.  



 2 

 
• VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  This request is consistent with 

the plan for low/medium density residential. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:   
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Will require detailed survey at time of permit to 
ensure fence is off ROW. 

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: Knox box must be installed. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
MOTION  Mr. Visintainer made a motion to recommend approval of Conditional Use 
Approval for a fence with gates at 1836 & 1842 Shades Crest Rd.. with the following conditions: 

1. The residential property must be a lot of record 
recorded in the Office of the Judge of Probate; and 

2. The fence and gate shall be constructed so as to be 
open, ornamental and decorative in style and 
constructed of finished stone, masonry and/or metal. 
Said fencing located within the front yard setback 
shall exclude wood and/or chain link fencing; and 

3. Said fencing shall be located a minimum of 2' inside 
the front lot line or a minimum of 5' from any 
public improvements, within the right-of-way, 
whichever is greater. Said location shall be 
approved by the City Planner and/or City Engineer 
in order to mitigate adverse effects to the subject or 
adjacent properties. NOTE: All public 
improvements, including utilities, shall be 
designated on required drawings in the form of a 
survey and certified by an Engineer and/or Surveyor 
licensed by the State of Alabama; and 

4. Said security gate shall be set back minimum 40' 
from the edge of pavement or at least 2' inside of 
the private property line, whichever is greater; and 



 3 

5. A Knox switch/switches shall be installed and gate 
shall be at proper width in order to allow access for 
emergency vehicles and shall be approved by Fire 
Marshall prior to permitting. 

Second was by Mr. Gilchrist. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 

Mr. Goodwin – no   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Sharp – yes          
Mr. Wolfe – yes   Mr. Visintainer – yes     
Mr. Brooks – yes    Mr. Larson – yes     
Motion carried. 

 
 





















RESOLUTION NUMBER 4778 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL 
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO SECURE REPAIRS TO THE WALD PARK 
SWIMMING POOL 

 
 WHEREAS, sealed bids were invited to be opened and read publicly in the Council 

Chamber of the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center on March 17, 2015 for repairs and resurfacing 

of the Wald Park Swimming Pool; and 

 WHEREAS, no bids were submitted so, in an Interoffice Memorandum dated October 

28, 2015, the Director of Public Services advised that his department would negotiate with 

various vendors for said project; a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4778 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Public Services Director in an email to the City Manager dated 

November 19, 2015 detailed three quotes to complete said repairs/resurfacing and recommended 

the acceptance of the proposal from Clearwater Pools in an amount not to exceed $116,400; a 

copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4778 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager concurs with the Public Services Director’s 

recommendation and recommends acceptance of the proposal as submitted by Clearwater Pools 

and detailed in the attached Exhibit B; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the City Manager and the Public Services Director. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to take all actions necessary to secure the 

repairs/resurfacing as detailed in the proposal from Clearwater Pools in an amount not 

to exceed $116,000; and 

2. Funding for said repairs will be derived from the Capital Projects Fund; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4778 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4778



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4778



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4778



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4779 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION FOR PRELIMINARY 
ENGINEERING AGREEMENT PROJECT STPBH-3715(), PROJECT 
REFERENCE NUMBER 100063244 FOR ROADWAY AND 
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON CAHABA RIVER ROAD FROM 
SR-38 (US-280) TO KEY DRIVE IN CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement Number with the State of Alabama, acting by 

and through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Preliminary Engineering Agreement Project STPBH-3715(), Project 

Reference Number 100063244 for Roadway and Intersection 

Improvements on Cahaba River Road from SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive 

in City of Vestavia Hills. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by the City Manager and the 

Mayor, for and on its behalf; and 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the Seal of the City affixed 

thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution Number 4779 shall be conditioned 

upon successful approval and completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties and 

that upon the completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such 

Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 28th 
day of December, 2015, and that such Resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on the _________ day of _________________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
        City Clerk 
 
           SEAL 
 





5

9

14

8

13

2

6
7

3

1

10

4

11

M
unicipality

B
irm

ingham

Jefferson C
ounty

M
t. B

rook

Vestavia H
ills

0
1,000

2,000Feet
C

ahaba R
iver R

d.
B

irm
ingham

, A
L

12



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1409 Coliseum Boulevard, Montgomery, Alabama 36110

P. O. Box 303050, Montgomery, Alabama 36130-3050

Robert Bentley
Governor

December 18,2014

Mr. DeJarvis Leonard, P. E.
East Central Region Engineer
240 Highway 280
Alabama Department of Transportation
P.O.Box 1179

Alexander City, AL 35011-1179

RE: Preliminary Engineering Agreement
Project STPBH-3715()
Project Reference Number 100063244
Roadway and Intersection Improvements on Cahaba
River Road from SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive
in the City of Vestavia Hills
Jefferson County

John R. Cooper
Transportation Director

Dear Mr. Leonard:

Enclosed is the original Agreement (and one copy) between the State and the City of Vestavia Hills
for Project STPBH-3715 (), which provides a preliminary engineering program for roadway and
intersection improvements on Cahaba River Road from SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive in the City of
Vestavia Hills, Alabama.

Please review this Agreement and, if it is in order, present the original and copy to the City for
approval. After execution by the mayor, please return the original document and the copy with
original signatures to this office for further handling. A certified resolution affixed with the City seal
which authorizes the mayor to sign the Agreement, should be included with the original Agreement
as well as with the copy. Also, the City seal should be affixed to both signed Agreements.

If you have any questions concerning this Agreement, please call Jim Doolin at (334) 242-6097.

Sincerely,

Robert J. Jilla

Multimodal Transportation Engineer

RJJ: ECO/JD/db

Enclosures

l&A,OvnJ\
Dr/Emmanuel C. Oranika

etropolitan Transportation Planning Administrator

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



K:i<o-043C?>

AGREEMENT

FOR

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA, ,~ l-r ap, u«1V.54
AND

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

Project STPBH-3715 ()
Project Reference Number 100063244

Roadway and Intersection Improvements on Cahaba
River Road from SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive

in the City of Vestavia Hills

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama,

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as

STATE; and the Cityof Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY; in cooperation

with the United States Department of Transportation, Federal HighwayAdministration,

hereinafter referred to as the FHWA; and

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the

Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed

therein; and

WHEREAS, it is in thepublic interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward

the implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and

WHEREAS, the STATE and the CITY desire to cooperate in a preliminary design

engineering program for roadway and intersection improvements onCahaba River Road from

SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive in the City of Vestavia Hills.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows:

(1) The CITY will perform or have performed all services required to fulfill thepurposes of

this Agreement. The East Central Region of the Department of Transportation will be the

1

/

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



lead agency for the STATE relative to the work under this Agreement and will be point

of contact for the CITY.

(2) This Agreement will cover only the preliminary engineering phase of the work.

(3) The preliminary engineering phase is hereby defined as that work necessary to advance

the development of the Project through construction authorization by the FHWA. The

preliminary engineering will be performed by or for the CITY and will include all

environmental studies and documentation required by FHWA.

(4) Funding for this Agreement is subjectto availability of Federal Aid funds at the time of

authorization by FHWA.

(5) The project will be financed, wheneligible for Federal participation, on the basis of 80

percent Federal funds and 20 percent CITY funds. The estimated costand participation

by the various parties is as follows:

Total Estimated Estimated

Estimated Federal CITY

Cost Funds Funds

Preliminary Engineering
$648.385 $518.708 $129.677

TOTAL $648,385 $518,708 $129,677

It is understood thatthe above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds

the estimate, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share of the final cost.

(6) The STATE will assist the CITY inany public involvement action that may berequired.

(7) The CITY will invoice the STATE for the Federal share of the preliminary engineering

costs not more frequently than monthly. Requests for reimbursements will be made on

forms provided by the STATE and submitted through the East Central Region Engineer

for payment.

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



(8) Invoices for any phase of work performedby the CITY under the terms of this

Agreement will be submitted within twelve (12) months after the completion and

acceptance by the STATE of the work. Any invoices submitted after this twelve-month

period will not be eligible for payment.

(9) Any cost for work not eligible for Federal participation will be financed 100 percent by

the CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit.

(10) The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, due to rules and/or regulations

of FHWA (including but not limited to delay of the projects, or delay of projects

contemplated to be developed andaccomplished in sequence to the current projects) that

the Federal funds expended on this Project must be refunded to the FHWA, the CITY

will reimburse and payto the STATE a sum ofmoney equal to the total amount of

STATE and Federal funds expended under this Agreement.

(11) Any services of the STATE necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement will be

paidas provided for herein.

(12) The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be inaccordance with the

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA.

(13) The STATE will provide without cost tothe CITY information available from itsrecords

that will facilitate the performance of the work.

(14) It is clearly understood by both parties that the STATE does notcommit any STATE or

Federal funds beyond thosementioned herein and thata separate agreement will be

required for the construction of the proposed improvement.

(15) A final audit will be made of all project records after the completion of the project and a

copy will be furnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance

with Act 1994, No. 94-414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties

as reflected by the final audit and this Agreement.

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



(16) The CITY will be responsible at all times for all of the work performed under this

Agreement and, the CITY will protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless the State of

Alabama, the Alabama Department ofTransportation, the officials, officers, and

employees, in both their official and individual capacities, and their agents and/or

assigns, from and against any and all action, damages, claims, loss, liabilities, attorney's

fees or expense whatsoever or any amount paid in compromise thereof arising out ofor

connected with the work performed under this Agreement.

(17) By enteringinto this Agreement, the CITY is not an agentof the STATE, its officers,

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and

nothing in this Agreement creates an agencyrelationship between the parties.

(18) By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration ofthe Agreement,

that they will notviolate Federal immigration law orknowingly employ, hire for

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama.

Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation ofthis provision shall be

deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting

therefrom.

(19) Theterms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed

by the parties hereto.

(20) This Agreement will remain in effect,unless otherwise terminated by either party upon

the delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination.

(21) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE orthe CITY

that will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama (7/24th Law).

(22) Exhibits M and N are attached and herebymade a part of this Agreement.

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by
those officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, andthe Agreement is deemed to
be dated and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of the approval of the
Governor of Alabama.

SEAL

ATTEST:

City Clerk (Signature)

Type name of Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By:
Chief Counsel, JmTR. Ippolito, Jr

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA

By:
Mayor (Signature)

Type name of Mayor

East Central Regional Engineer, DeJarvis Leonard, P. E.

Multimodal Transportation Engineer,
Robert J. Jilla

Chief Engineer, Ronald L. Baldwin, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA

ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Transportation Director, John R. Cooper

this

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved bythe Governor of the State ofAlabama
. day of , 20 .

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY

/

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



7/18/90 Exhibit M

CERTIFICATION

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument.

The prospective participant/recipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this
Federalcontract, grant, loan, cooperativeagreement, or other instrument as might be applicable
under Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the
prospective participant/recipient each respectively certify that to the best of the knowledge and
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of
the prospective participant/recipient, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalfof
the prospective participant/recipient or the person signing on behalf of the participant/recipient as
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any Federal agency, a Memberof Congress, an officeror employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection withthe awarding of any Federal contract, the
making of any Federal grant, the making of anyFederal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, andthe extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will bepaid
toany person for influencing or attempting to influence anofficer or employee of any Federal
agency, a Member of Congress, anofficer oremployee ofCongress, or anemployee ofa
Member of Congress, or anemployee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal
contract, grant, loan, orcooperative agreement, or other instrument asmight beapplicable under
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, the prospective participant/recipient shall complete and
submitStandard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its
instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact uponwhichreliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed bySection 1352, Title 31,U. S. Code. Any
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Theprospective participant/recipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract,
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, that the prospective participant/recipient shall require that the
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000
and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

/

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



07/01/2002

EXHIBIT N

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 11, Section 213 of the Constitution of Alabama,
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is further agreed that if any provision of this
agreement shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either now in
effect or which may, during the course of this agreement, be enacted, then the conflicting
provision in the agreement shall be deemed null and void.

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS

If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject to
termination in the event that funds shouldnot be appropriated for the continued payment of the
agreement in subsequent fiscal years.

Intheeventof proration of the fund from which payment under this agreement is to be made,
agreementwill be subject to termination.

ADR CLAUSE

For anyand all disputes arising under the terms of this contract, the parties hereto agree, in
compliance withtherecommendations of theGovernor and Attorney General, when considering
settlement of suchdisputes, to utilize appropriate forms ofnon-binding alternative dispute
resolution including, but not limited to, mediation by and through the Attorney General Officeof
Administrative Hearings or where appropriate, private mediators.

/

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



RESOLUTION NUMBER

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City ofVestavia Hills, Alabama as
follows:

1. That the City enters into anAgreement Number with the State of Alabama, acting by
and through the Alabama Department ofTransportation for:

Preliminary Engineering Agreement Project STPBH-3715(), Project Reference
Number 100063244 for Roadway and Intersection Improvements on CahabaRiver
Road from SR-38(US-280) to Key Drive in the City ofVestavia Hills.

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by the Mayor, for and on its
behalf:

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed
thereto.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the
Agreement by all parties that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk.

Passed, adopted and approved this day of , 20 .

ATTESTED:

City Clerk Mayor, City ofVestavia Hills

I, the undersignedqualified and acting clerk ofVestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby
certify that the above and foregoing is a true copyof aresolution passed andadopted by the City
Council of the City namedtherein, at a regular meeting of suchCouncil held on the dayof

, 20 , and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of
the City on this day of , 20 .

City Clerk

Exhibits for Resolution No. 4779



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4780 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ACQUISITION PROGRAM FOR PROJECT STPBH-3715(), PROJECT 
REFERENCE NUMBER 100063245 FOR ROADWAY AND 
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON CAHABA RIVER ROAD FROM 
SR-38 (US-280) TO KEY DRIVE IN CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement Number with the State of Alabama, acting by 

and through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Right-of-Way Acquisition Program for Project STPBH-3715(), Project 

Reference Number 100063245 for Roadway and Intersection 

Improvements on Cahaba River Road from SR-38 (US-280) to Key Drive 

in City of Vestavia Hills; which Agreement is before this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by the City Manager and the 

Mayor, for and on its behalf; and 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the Seal of the City affixed 

thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution Number 4780 shall be conditioned 

upon successful approval and completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties and 

that upon the completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such 

Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 28th 
day of December, 2015, and that such Resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on the _________ day of _________________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
        City Clerk 
 
           SEAL 



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4780



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4781 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORATION FOR UTILITY AND 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT STPBH-3715(), 
PROJECT REFERENCE NUMBER 100063246 AND 100063247 FOR 
ROADWAY AND INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS ON CAHABA 
RIVER ROAD FROM SR-38 (US-280) TO KEY DRIVE IN THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement Number with the State of Alabama, acting by 

and through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Utility and Construction Agreement for Project STPBH-3715(), Project 

Reference Number 100063246 and 100063247 for Roadway and 

Intersection Improvements on Cahaba River Road from SR-38 (US-280) 

to Key Drive in the City of Vestavia Hills; which Agreement is before this 

Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by the City Manager and the 

Mayor, for and on its behalf; and 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the Seal of the City affixed 

thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution Number 4781 shall be conditioned 

upon successful approval and completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties and 

that upon the completion of the execution of the Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such 

Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr 
      Mayor 
 
 



 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on the 28th 
day of December, 2015, and that such Resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 
the City on the _________ day of _________________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
        City Clerk 
 
           SEAL 



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



Exhibits for Resolution No. 4781



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4782 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL 
AGREMEENT WITH JEFFERSON COUNTY AND THE CITIES OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK AND BIRMINGHAM FOR PROJECT NUMBER 
STPBH-3715() CAHABA RIVER ROAD FROM SR-38 (US 280) TO KEY 
DRIVE 

 
 WHEREAS, Jefferson County and the Cities of Vestavia Hills, Mountain Brook and 

Birmingham desire to make certain improvements to Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to 

Key Drive (Project); and 

 WHEREAS, the Project traverses through all four jurisdictions; and 

 WHEREAS, all four parties desire to divide the costs pursuant to the terms and 

conditions of a multi-jurisdictional agreement (Agreement), a copy of which is marked as 

“Exhibit A,”, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4782 as though written 

fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best public interest to 

participate in said Agreement. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver said 

Agreement as detailed in Exhibit A; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4782 is conditioned upon successful execution by all 

jurisdictions; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4782 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 1 of 6 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
 

AGREEMENT 

TO 

SHARE RESPONSIBILITIES 

(Joint Services Agreement) 

 

Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road 

From Highway 280 to Key Drive 

 
The CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA (Vestavia), JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA (County), the CITY OF 
BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA (Birmingham), and the CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA (Mountain Brook), 
enter into this agreement on the _______ day of ____________________, 20____.  The provisions of this agreement shall 
become effective __________________________, 20____. 
 
 WHEREAS, Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook, desire to make certain 
improvements to Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive (Project); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project traverses through the four jurisdictions, Vestavia, County, Birmingham, and 
Mountain Brook; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all four parties desire to divide the Preliminary Engineering costs based on the percentage of 
the Project in each jurisdiction as follows:  Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook will divide the 
responsibility as follows:  Vestavia responsibility being 26% of the costs, County responsibility being 36% of the 
costs, Birmingham responsibility being 32% of the costs, and Mountain Brook responsibility being 5% for the 
costs.  Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook desire to establish their agreement herewith; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a copy of the projected preliminary engineering costs as approved by ALDOT is included as 
an exhibit and represent a not to exceed cost for each entity 
 
 WHEREAS, the Alabama Legislature adopted Alabama Code §41-16-50(b) which provides in pertinent 
part, that: 
 

(b) The governing bodies of two or more contracting agencies, as enumerated in subsection (a), 
or the governing bodies of two or more counties, or the governing bodies of two or more city 
or county boards of education, may provide, by joint agreement, for the purchase of labor, 
services, or work, or for the purchase or lease of materials, equipment, supplies, or other 
personal property for use by their respective agencies.  The agreement shall be entered into by 
similar ordinances, in the case of municipalities, or resolutions, in the case of other contracting 
agencies, adopted by each of the participating governing bodies, which shall set forth the 
categories of labor, services, or work, or for the purchase or lease of materials, equipment, 
supplies, or other personal property to be purchased, the manner of advertising for bids and the 
awarding of contracts, the method of payment by each participating contracting agency, and 
other matters deemed necessary to carry out the purposes of the agreement.  Each contracting 
agency’s share of expenditures for purchases under any agreement shall be appropriated and 
paid in the manner set forth in the agreement and in the same manner as for other expenses of 
the contracting agency.  The contracting agencies entering into a joint agreement, as herein 
permitted, may designate a joint purchasing or bidding agent, and the agent shall comply with 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 2 of 6 
 

this article.  Purchases, contracts, or agreements made pursuant to a joint purchasing or bidding 
agreement shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this article.   

 
; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Alabama Legislature adopted Alabama Code §11-102-1 which provides that: 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this chapter or as otherwise prohibited by law, any county or 
incorporated municipality of the State of Alabama may enter into a written contract with any 
one or more counties or incorporated municipalities for the joint exercise of any power or 
service that state or local law authorizes each or the contracting entities to exercise individually.  
For purpose of this chapter, it is sufficient if each of the contracting entities has the authority to 
exercise or perform the power or service which is the subject of the contract regardless of the 
manner in which the power or service shall be exercised or performed, provided that at least 
one of the contracting parties has the authority to exercise their power or service in the manner 
agreed upon by the parties.  The joint contract may provide for the power or service to be 
exercised by one or more entities on behalf of the others or jointly by the entities. 

 
; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all parties find that it is in the public interest that the parties enter into a joint 
purchasing/service agreement in accordance with the Alabama Code §41-16-50(b) and §11-102-1, et seq., in order to 
authorize the City of Vestavia Hills to engage in the purchase of certain services and materials through the 
competitive bid process for use by the parties, i.e. in order for Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain 
Brook  to make certain improvements to Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive.  
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PREMISES stated herein Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook 
mutually agree as follows: 
 

I.  PURPOSE:  The Parties agree to jointly undertake to provide for the following improvements to 
Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive (Project):  milling, resurfacing, and other 
necessary repairs (including storm drains, inlets and road capacity expansion) to the road bed for 
placement of the final pavement wearing surface. 
 
 

II. RESPONSIBILITES:  The Parties have authorized this agreement pursuant to similar ordinances 
passed by Vestavia, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook and a similar resolution passed by the County, 
adopted by the governing body of each party, which sets forth the categories of labor, services, or 
work, or for the purchase or lease of materials, equipment, supplies, or other personal property to 
be purchased, the manner of advertising for bids and the awarding of contracts, the method of 
payment by each participating contracting agency, and other matters deemed necessary to carry out 
the purposes of this agreement.  The Parties agree to the following:   
 
a. Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook jointly agree that Goodwyn, Mills, and 

Cawood (GMC) is an authorized professional services organization authorized to perform 
services as an ALDOT authorized engineering firm. 
 

b. Vestavia, the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook agree to the terms of a man day fee 
proposal for engineering services submitted by GMC and approved by ALDOT. 
 

c. The City of Vestavia Hills will enter into a separate agreement with GMC to provide the design 
and construction plans.  Vestavia will invoice the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook for 
their respective share of the consultant fee.  The County’s share being 36%, Birmingham’s share 
being 32%, and Mountain Brook’s share being 5%.  

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 3 of 6 
 

d. During the corridor study and early stages of engineering performed by GMC, the extent and 
scope of the required work associated with improvement to Cahaba River Rd will be better 
determined. This information will then be utilized to better determine the construction, right of 
way and utility cost share by each entity. 
 

e. Due to the use of federal funds, the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) is 
designated as the bidding agent and will advertise and accept bids for the construction of the 
Project. 
 

f. ALDOT will determine the low bidder and enter into a separate Agreement with the contractor 
for the construction of the Project.   
 

g. ALDOT will invoice Vestavia for the required 20% local match for the Project. Vestavia will 
invoice the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook for their respective share of the local 
match.  The share of construction costs shall be mutually agreed by all parties through an 
amendment of this agreement based upon the extent of work to be constructed in each party’s 
road segment.  
 

h. Each party’s share of the expenditures for purchases under this agreement shall be appropriated 
and paid in the manner set forth in this agreement and in the same manner as for other 
expenses of the entity. 
 

i. This agreement shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the applicable Alabama Bid Laws.  
 

III. TERM:  The duration of this contract shall not exceed three years from the date of its final execution 
of the end of the Project, whichever first occurs. 
 

IV. IMPLEMENTATION:  The Parties agree as follows: 
 
a. Vestavia will assume responsibility for the management of the Project. 

  
b. Vestavia will provide Construction, Engineering & Inspection (CE&I) during the construction 

phase of the Project with the County, Birmingham, and Mountain Brook providing additional 
staff for the inspection for the portion of the Project within their jurisdiction.  
 

c. The parties expressly agree that Vestavia does not assume any risk or future liability, or any 
future responsibility for any portion of Cahaba River Road located within the jurisdictions of the 
County, Birmingham, or Mountain Brook.   
 

d. Except as expressly provided in this agreement, no party for the contract shall have any power 
to incur any debt which shall become the responsibility of any other contracting party. 
 

e. Except as specifically provided in this agreement, the execution of this agreement or the 
performance of any act pursuance to this provisions of thereof shall not be deemed or 
construed to have effect of creating between the parties the relationship of principal or agent or 
of partnership or of joint venture.  
 

f. Except as otherwise provided by law and as limited by this agreement between the parties, any 
entity which contacts to perform or exercise any service or power pursuant to this chapter shall 
have the full power and authority to act within the jurisdiction of all contracting entities to the 
extent necessary to carry out the purposes of the contract. 
 

g. Each party to this agreement shall adopt all ordinances, resolutions, or policies necessary to 
authorize the other contracting parties to carry out their contractual duties and responsibilities.  
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 4 of 6 
 

V. IMMIGRATION LAW AND COMPLIANCE: 
 
a. Parties represent and warrant that they do not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 

continue to employ, in Alabama, an “unauthorized alien,” as defined by the Beason-Hammon 
Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, §31-13-1, et seq., Code of Alabama 1975, as 
amended (the  “Act”). 
 

b. Parties represent and warrant that they will enroll in the E-Verify program prior to performing 
any work on the Project in Alabama and shall provide documentation establishing that the Party 
is enrolled in the E-Verify program.  During the performance of this Agreement, Parties shall 
participate in the E-Verify program as required under the terms of the Act and shall verify every 
employee in Alabama that is required to be verified according to the applicable federal rules and 
regulations. 
 

c. Parties agree to comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect to its 
subcontractors by entering into an agreement with or by obtaining an affidavit from such 
subcontractors providing work for the Party on the Project in Alabama, that such 
subcontractors are in compliance with the Act with respect to their participation in the E-Verify 
program.  Parties represent and warrant that they shall not hire, retain, or contract with any 
subcontractor to work on the Project in Alabama which the Party knows is not in compliance 
with the Act.  

 

 
d. By signing this Contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, that 

they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 
continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama.  Furthermore a 
contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the 
agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom.  
 

VI. TERMINATION: 
 
a. Any party hereto may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving thirty (30) days’ notice of 

the intention to do so to the other parties.  Such notice shall be sent to the governing bodies of 
the other parties.  
 

b. Upon termination, all unused materials purchased by Vestavia under this agreement shall be 
returned to Vestavia within thirty (30) days of termination.  

 

c. Upon termination, the terminating party shall be responsible for any ALDOT cost share that 
would be demanded as a reimbursement by ALDOT or the Federal Highway Administration. 

 
 

VII. SEVERABLITY:  If any provision of this agreement is declared by a court having jurisdiction to be 
illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be 
affected; the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the agreement 
did not contain the particular provision held to be invalid.  
 

VIII. GOVERNING LAW:  This agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Alabama as interpreted by Alabama Courts.  

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
INWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized 
representative as reflected below. 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
BY: ___________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 
ATTEST:    
       __________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 
BY:  ____________________________________ 
        Jeffrey Downes, City Manager 
 
ATTEST:    
       __________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 
 
___________________________ 
Date 

 
BY:  ______________________________ 
        James A. Stephens, President 
        Jefferson County Commission 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
        
 
 
 
 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, ALABAMA 
 
___________________________ 
Date 

 
BY:  ______________________________ 
        William A. Bell, Sr., Mayor 
      
    
ATTEST: _________________________ 
 
       
 
  

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



 

 
Joint Services Agreement:  Various Roadway Improvements on Cahaba River Road from Highway 280 to Key Drive                           

Page 6 of 6 
 

 
_______________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Date 

BY: ___________________________________ 
       Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:    
       __________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 
 
BY:  ____________________________________ 
        Sam Gaston, City Manager 
 
ATTEST:    
       __________________________________ 
       City Clerk 
 

 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4782



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2626 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A GENERAL SALES CONTRACT FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF 0.42 ACRE OF PROPERTY TO BE USED AS A 
PART OF A PROPOSED ALTERNATE ACCESS TO THE 
RECREATIONAL FIELDS TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT THE FORMER 
ALTADENA VALLEY COUNTRY CLUB 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a general sales 

contract for the purchase of 0.42 acres +/- of property to be used as a part of a proposed 

alternate access to the proposed recreational fields at the former Altadena Valley Country 

Club pursuant to the terms and conditions of a General Sales Contract, a copy of which is 

marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2626 as 

though written fully therein; and 

2. Funding for said property shall be expensed to the City’s Capital Project’s Improvement 

Fund; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2626 shall become effective immediately upon publishing and/or 

posting as required by Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 

1 
1/3897759.2 

GENERAL SALES CONTRACT         December ___, 2015  
 
 
The undersigned purchaser,  CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA (“Purchaser”),                            hereby agrees to purchase and the 
undersigned seller,  JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA (“Seller”),                                                                 hereby agree to sell the following 
described real estate consisting of approximately       0.42                 acres, more or less, together with all improvements, shrubbery, plantings, fixtures and 
appurtenances (the “Property”), situated in  Jefferson County, Alabama, on the terms stated below:  SEE EXHIBIT A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference for drawing depicting the Property. 
 
1. THE PURCHASE PRICE: shall be $10,000.00   payable as follows:  
 

Earnest Money, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged (the “Earnest Money”) ............................................................................ $100.00 
 Cash on closing this sale   .................................................................................................................................. $9,900.00   
 
2. TITLE INSURANCE, SURVEY AND ENVIRONMENTAL: Purchaser shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain (a) a commitment (the “Title 
Commitment”) for the issuance of a title insurance policy (the “Title Policy”) in the amount of the Purchase Price with respect to the Property issued by a 
title insurance company selected by Purchaser, (b) a survey  of the Property  (the “Survey”) from an Alabama licensed land surveyor, which Survey  must 
be approved by Seller on or before the Closing, as hereinafter defined, and (c)  an environmental phase I site assessment report of the Property (the 
“Environmental Report”) from an engineering firm selected by Purchaser.  Upon approval of the Survey by both Seller and Purchaser, the property 
description set forth on the approved Survey shall be deemed the legal description of the Property.  At the Closing, the Property shall be free and clear of 
all liens and encumbrances and Seller shall, at Seller’s sole cost and expense, cause any liens and encumbrances affecting the Property to be removed on or 
before the Closing. The Property is sold and is to be conveyed subject to present zoning classification, _____, and __NOT __ located in a flood plain.        
 
3. PRORATIONS AND CLOSING COSTS: The Property is exempt from ad valorem taxes and there shall be no prorations at the Closing.  Purchaser 
shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses relating to the issuance of the Title Commitment, the Title Policy, the Survey and the Title Report. 
Each party shall be responsible for its own attorneys’ fees and expenses. 
 
4. ENTRY:  Seller grants to Purchaser, its agents, employees, representatives and contractors the right to enter upon the Property to conduct 
investigations and inspections of the Property, including, without limitation, the preparation of the Survey and the Environmental Report, prior to the 
Closing. 
 
5. CLOSING CONDITIONS:  The Closing of the transaction contemplated by this Contract is expressly subject to the satisfaction of all of the 
following conditions (collectively, the “Conditions”) on or prior to the Closing:   
  

(a) Purchaser shall be satisfied, in its sole and absolute discretion, with the Title Commitment, the Survey and the Environmental Report; 
(b) Seller shall have approved the Survey; and 
(c) Purchaser shall have purchased and acquired from International Park Meisler-Keith, LLC that certain real property situated adjacent to the 

Property which will be developed as a road providing access to and from Acton Road through the Property to the real property described as 
“Altadena Valley County Club” lying directly east of the Property, as shown on EXHIBIT A hereto. 

 
If, for any reason, all of the Conditions have not been satisfied by the Closing, then this Contract shall automatically terminate, be deemed cancelled and 
terminated and of no further force or effect and the Earnest Money shall be refunded to Purchaser.   
 
6. CLOSING & POSSESSION DATES: Subject to the satisfaction of the Conditions, the sale shall be closed (the “Closing”) and the deed delivered 
on or before     March 31, 2016           ; provided, however, that if all of the Conditions are satisfied prior to March 31, 2016, then Purchaser shall have the 
right to elect to close this transaction at any time upon at least five (5) days prior written notice to Seller. Possession is to be given on delivery of the deed.  
 
7. CONVEYANCE: The Seller agrees to convey the Property to the Purchaser by         statutory                         warranty deed free of all liens and 
encumbrances.  Seller and Purchaser agree that the Property will be conveyed subject to current and future years’ ad valorem taxes and assessments and all 
easements, restrictions, rights-of-way and other matters of record as of the date of this Contract (other than any liens and encumbrances which shall be 
satisfied by Seller on or prior to the Closing).  The legal description for the Property set forth on the Survey approved by both Seller and Purchaser shall be 
used as the legal description of the Property on the deed.  At the Closing, Seller shall execute such documents as may be required by the title company 
issuing the Title Commitment. 
 
8. BROKERS:  NONE. 
 
9. SELLER WARRANTIES:  Seller warrants that it has not received notification from any lawful authority regarding any assessments, pending public 
improvements, repairs, replacements, or alterations to the Property that have not been satisfactorily made.  Seller warrants that there is no unpaid 
indebtedness, mortgages or liens on the Property.  These warranties shall survive the delivery of the above deed. 
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2626



 

2 
1/3897759.2 

10. EARNEST MONEY & PURCHASER’S DEFAULT: Seller shall hold the Earnest Money in trust pending the fulfillment of this Contract.  If, for 
any reason, Purchaser fails to close the transaction contemplated by the Contract other than as a result of the failure of any of the Conditions, then Seller 
acknowledges and agrees that its sole and exclusive remedy shall be to cancel and terminate the Contract and retain the Earnest Money.  Seller does 
hereby expressly waive any right to seek or obtain any monetary judgment or damages against Purchaser in the event Purchaser fails to close the 
transaction contemplated by this Contract and acknowledges and agrees that its sole and exclusive remedy in the event of any such default shall be to 
retain the Earnest Money as liquidated damages. 
 
11. CONSTRUCTION OF ROAD: Purchaser covenants and agrees that following the Closing, Purchaser shall construct or cause to be constructed a 
public roadway over, across and upon the Property substantially in the location as shown on Exhibit A hereto, which roadway shall also be available for 
use by Seller to provide vehicular access to the remaining real property owned by Seller and designated as “JCES Property “ on Exhibit A.  
 
12. SEWER EASEMENTS: Notwithstanding anything provided herein to the contrary, to the extent the Survey indicates that any sanitary sewer lines 
of Seller are situated on, upon or under any of the Property and such sanitary sewer lines are not subject to existing easement agreements, then at the 
Closing, Seller and Purchaser shall enter into Seller’s standard form sanitary sewer line easement agreement for any such sewer lines situated on, upon or 
under any of the Property. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Purchaser and Seller have executed this Contract as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
        Purchaser: 
 
        CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 

 
By: ____________________________________________________  
Printed Name:         
Its:         

 
 
 

 
By: ____________________________________________________  
Printed Name:         
Its:         

 
       Seller: 
 
       JEFFERSON COUNTY, ALABAMA 
 
 

 
By: ____________________________________________________  
Printed Name:         
Its:         

 
 
         

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2626



 

3 
1/3897759.2 

EXHIBIT A 
Drawing Indicating Size and Location of Property 

 
The “Property” consists of the real property described as “Property to be appraised: (Light blue and Light Green areas)” 

shown on the attached. 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2626



 

4 
1/3897759.2 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2626



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER_2627 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE OPERATION OF 
TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES (TNCs) IN 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, TO 
PROVIDE FOR THE PERMITTING, RULES AND 
REGULATIONS FOR SAID TNCs AND TO PROVIDE 
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION THEREOF 
 
 

THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2627 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that there is a strong demand in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for more 

transportation options.  Competition in the marketplace benefits riders, drivers and cities; and 

WHEREAS, not only do consumers have more choice and greater access to a safe and 

reliable ride at their fingertips, drivers have additional economic opportunities and a way to 

make money on a flexible schedule; and 

WHEREAS, allowing transportation network companies (TNCs) to operate in the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama in a safe and convenient manner will best serve the citizens of the 

City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  PURPOSES; AUTHORIZATION:  Transportation network 

services provide an alternate form of transportation for residents and visitors to the City.  The 

purpose of this Ordinance is to authorize the use of the City’s rights-of-way by transportation 

network company drivers in a manner that is safe, convenient and serves the public welfare.   

SECTION TWO:  DEFINITIONS 

A. TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY OR TNC:  Transportation network 

company or TNC shall mean an entity permitted pursuant to Section Three-A of this Ordinance 

that uses a digital network or software application service to connect passengers to 

transportation network company services provided by transportation network company drivers.  

The vehicles used to provide transportation network company services are not motor carriers, 

express companies, utilities, common carriers, contract carriers, transportation companies, 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 2 

 
limousine services, taxicabs or vehicles for hire pursuant to Chapter 37 of the Code of 

Alabama, 1975, for purposes of this Ordinance. 

B. TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY (TNC) DRIVER:  Transportation 

network company (TNC) driver shall mean an individual who operates a motor vehicle that is: 

  (1) Owned, leased or otherwise authorized for use by the individual; 

  (2) Not classified as a taxicab or vehicle-for-hire; 

  (3) Used to provide transportation network company services; 

  (4) Inspected and insured as required by Sections Eight and Nine of this 

Ordinance; and 

  (5) Capable of carrying no more than six (6) passengers at the same time. 

C. TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANY (TNC) SERVICES:  Transportation 

network company (TNC) services shall mean transportation of a passenger between points 

chosen by the passenger and prearranged with a TNC driver through the use of a TNC digital 

network or software application.  TNC services shall begin when a TNC driver accepts a 

request for transportation received through the TNC’s digital network or software application 

service, continue while the TNC driver transports the passenger in the TNC driver’s vehicle, 

and end when the passenger exits the TNC driver’s vehicle.  TNC service is not taxicab or 

vehicles for hire for purposes of this Ordinance. 

SECTION THREE:  TNC PERMIT REQUIRED:   

A. A person shall not operate a TNC in the City without first having obtained a 

permit from the City; however, a person operating a TNC in the City as of the effective date of 

this Ordinance may continue to operate for a period of thirty (30) days following the effective 

date of this Ordinance so as to permit the person or entity to obtain a permit from the City 

pursuant to this section. 

B. The permit application shall include a description of an identification card that is 

at a minimum the size of a license plate and that identifies the vehicle displaying it as a vehicle 

providing services on behalf of the permitted TNC. 

C. Each applicant for a permit to operate a TNC shall comply with the 

requirements of this Ordinance and pay an annual fee of Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars 

($500.00) due January 1st and last payable without penalty January 31st of each year. 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 3 

 
D. A TNC permit is a privilege and not a right.  A TNC shall be subject to 

suspension or revocation of its permit for failing to comply with the requirements of this 

Ordinance. 

SECTION FOUR:  AGENT:  The TNC must at all times it operates in the municipal 

limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama or its police jurisdiction provide the City with 

current contact information, including an agent to accept service of process in the state.   

SECTION FIVE:  FARE CHARGED FOR SERVICES:  A TNC may charge a fare 

for the services provided to customers; provided that, if a fare is charged, the TNC shall 

disclose to customers the fare calculation method on its website or within the software 

application service.  The TNC shall provide customers with the applicable rates being charged 

and provide customers the option to receive an estimated fare before the customer decides to 

accept the services offered. 

SECTION SIX:  IDENTIFICATION OF TNC VEHICLES AND DRIVERS:   

A. The TNC’s software application or website shall provide the potential customer 

a picture of the TNC driver, and the license plate number of the motor vehicle utilized for 

providing the TNC service before the customer enters the TNC driver’s vehicle.  Customers 

will not be charged for a TNC service if the identification required herein is not available 

before the customer enters the TNC vehicle. 

B. At all times that a TNC driver is in his or her vehicle and either logged into the 

TNC service or providing TNC services, the vehicle he or she is driving shall prominently 

display the TNC identification card described in the TNC permit application. 

SECTION SEVEN:  RECEIPT:  Within a reasonable period of time following the 

completion of the trip, a TNC shall transmit a receipt to the passenger that lists: 

A. The origin and destination of the trip; 

B. The total time and distance of the trip; and 

C. An itemization of the total fare paid, if any. 

SECTION EIGHT: TNC DRIVER INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:   

A. Every TNC and TNC driver under this Ordinance and operated within the City 

limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama or police jurisdiction thereof shall be required to 

carry and maintain in effect the following minimum personal injury and property damage 

liability insurance: 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 4 

 
  (1) General liability insurance—Public liability coverage with each of the 

following limits: 

   (a) Bodily injury liability: 

    (i) One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) each person; and 

    (ii) One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) each occurrence; 

and 

   (b) Property damage liability—One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 

each occurrence; or 

   (c) In lieu of subparts (1)(a) and (b) hereinabove, bodily injury and 

property damage combined with limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence. 

  (2) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance including owned, non-

owned, and hired vehicles with each of the following limits: 

   (a) Bodily injury liability: 

    (i) Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000.00) each 

person; and 

    (ii) Five Hundred Thousand Dollar ($500,000.00) each 

occurrence; and 

   (b) Property damage liability One Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($100,000.00) each occurrence; or 

   (c) In lieu of subparts (2)(a) and (b) hereinabove, bodily injury and 

property damage combined with limits of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) per 

occurrence. 

B. No permit required by this Ordinance shall be granted to any person to operate 

any TNC or TNC vehicle upon the streets or elsewhere in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

or its police jurisdiction until such person shall have first filed with the City Revenue 

Department a certificate of the insurance requirements stated in subpart A hereinabove issued 

to such person by a public liability insurance company authorized to do business in the state. 

C. The insurance coverage required by this section shall at all times be maintained 

for the full amount.  The certificate of each policy or policies of insurance required by this 

section to be filed with the City Revenue Department shall contain a clause obligating the 

company issuing the same to give not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice to the City 

Revenue Department before cancellation thereof.  Notice of cancellation shall not relieve the 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 5 

 
company issuing such policy or policies of liability insurance for any injury or claim arising 

before the cancellation becomes effective.  The cancellation of any such policy shall have the 

effect of suspending the permit of such person to operate vehicles for TNC purposes covered 

thereby until a new policy or policies complying with the provisions of this section is filed with 

the City Revenue Department. 

D. Every insurance policy required hereunder shall contain a provision for 

continuing liability thereunder to the full amount thereof, notwithstanding any recovery 

thereon, that the liability of the insurer shall not be affected by the insolvency or the bankruptcy 

of the insured, and that until the policy is cancelled, the insurance company will not be relieved 

from the liability on account of nonpayment of premium, or any act or omission by the named 

insured.  Such policy of insurance shall further provide for the payment of any and all 

judgments, up to the limits of such policy, recovered against any person other than the owner, 

his agent or employee of any such business, who may operate the same with the consent or 

acquiescence of the owner. 

E. TNC drivers shall carry proof of the insured required under subsection C at all 

times that the TNC driver is in his or her vehicle and either logged into the TNC service or 

providing TNC services.  If the insurance is maintained by the TNC such proof of insurance 

shall, at a minimum, identify the TNC’s insurance company, policy number, effective dates of 

the policy, and instructions for filing a claim.  Proof of insurance may be displayed 

electronically through the TNC’s digital platform in accordance with Title 32-7A-6, Code of 

Alabama, 1975. 

SECTION NINE:  VEHICLE INSPECTION:  The vehicle used by a TNC driver to 

provide TNC services shall be kept in good mechanical and clean condition and subject to 

inspection by the City of Vestavia Hills, the Vestavia Hills Police Department and City Shop. 

SECTION TEN:  TNC DRIVER REQUIREMENTS:   

A. Prior to permitting an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital platform, 

the TNC shall: 

  (1) Require the individual to submit an application to the TNC, which 

includes information regarding his or her address, age, driver license, driving history, motor 

vehicle registration, automobile liability insurance, and other information required by the TNC; 

  (2) Conduct, or have a third party conduct, a local and national criminal 

background check for each applicant that shall include: 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 6 

 
   (a) Multi-state/multi-jurisdiction criminal records locator or other 

similar commercial nationwide database with validation (primary source search); and 

   (b) National Sex Offender Registry database. 

B. The TNC shall not permit an individual to act as a TNC driver on its digital 

platform who: 

  (1) Has had more than three (3) moving violations in the prior three-year 

period, or one (1) major violation in the prior three-year period (including, but not limited to, 

attempting to evade the police, reckless driving, or driving on a suspended or revoked license); 

  (2) Has been convicted, within the last seven (7) years, of driving under the 

influence of drugs or alcohol, fraud, sexual offenses, use of a motor vehicle to commit a felony, 

a crime involving property damage, and/or theft, acts of violence, or acts of terror; 

  (3) Is a match in the National Sex Offender Registry; 

  (4) Does not possess a valid drivers license; 

  (5) Does not possess proof of registration for the motor vehicle(s) used to 

provide TNC services; 

  (6) Does not possess proof of automobile liability insurance for the motor 

vehicle(s) used to provide TNC services; or 

  (7) Is not at least nineteen (19) years of age. 

SECTION ELEVEN:  NO STREET HAILS:  A TNC driver shall exclusively accept 

rides booked through a TNC’s digital network or software application service and shall not 

solicit or accept street hails.   

SECTION TWELVE:  NO DISCRIMINATION; ACCESSIBILITY:   

A. The TNC shall adopt a policy of non-discrimination on the basis of destination, 

race, color, national origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation 

with respect to passengers and potential passengers and notify TNC drivers of such policy. 

B. TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws regarding nondiscrimination 

against passengers or potential passengers on the basis of destination, race, color, national 

origin, religious belief or affiliation, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation. 

C. TNC drivers shall comply with all applicable laws relating to accommodation of 

service animals. 

D. A TNC shall not impose additional charges for providing services to persons 

with physical disabilities because of those disabilities. 



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 7 

 
E. A TNC shall provide passengers an opportunity to indicate whether they require 

a wheelchair-accessible vehicle.  If a TNC cannot arrange a wheelchair accessible TNC service 

in any instance, it shall direct the passenger to an alternate provider of wheelchair-accessible 

service, if available. 

SECTION THIRTEEN:  RECORDS:  A TNC shall maintain: 

A. Individual trip records for at least two (2) years from the date each trip was 

provided; 

B. TNC driver records at least until the two-year anniversary of the date on which a 

TNC driver’s activation on the TNC digital network has ended; and 

C. When requested, and no more frequently than on a quarterly basis, the TNC 

shall allow the City to visually inspect or audit the records of the TNC for purposes of verifying 

that the TNC is in compliance with the requirements of this Ordinance including, but not 

limited to, vehicle inspections, proper completion of criminal background checks, and proper 

insurance.  The audit shall take place at a mutually agreed locale in the City.  The City does not 

assume any responsibility for the operations of the TNC, its drivers or any actions or omissions 

arising in connection with its activities, which, at all times, shall remain the responsibility of 

the TNC. 

SECTION FOURTEEN:  VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES:  It shall be unlawful to 

violate any of the terms and provisions of this Ordinance.  Any person, firm or corporation 

violating any of the said terms and provisions of this Ordinance shall, upon conviction, be 

punished in accordance with Title 11-45-9, Code of Alabama, 1975, for a misdemeanor 

violation for each such offense.  Each day any violation of this Ordinance shall continue shall 

constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION FIFTEEN:  SEVERABILITY:  If any part, section or subdivision of this 

Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be 

construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, which shall continue in full 

force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

SECTION SIXTEEN: ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and 

section headings and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not 

be considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

  



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 8 

 
 

SECTION SEVENTEEN:  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance Number 2627 shall 

become effective immediately upon adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Mayor 
ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
  



Ordinance No. 2627 
Page 9 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 

I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance duly and legally 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 28th day of 
December, 2015 while in regular session, and the same appears of record in the minute book of 
said date of said City. 
 
 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____ day of December, 2015. 
 
            
      _______________________________________ 
       Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2625 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER_2625 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE SALE 
OF REAL ESTATE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
1280 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY, VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMWORA. 

 

 THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2625 is approved and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 28th day of December, 2015. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, declares municipalities 

corporate and gives them the power to contract and be contracted with; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the property, 

real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City 

Council may, by ordinance to be entered in its minutes, direct the disposal of any real 

property not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the Mayor to make title 

thereto, and a conveyance made by the Mayor in accordance with such ordinance invests 

the grantee with the title of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-28, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the Cty 

Manager shall be the head of the administrative branch of the government of the City of 

Vestavia Hills and shall be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration 

of all municipal affairs; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-43A-48, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all contracts 

for the City of Vestavia Hills shall be made and approved by ordinance and signed in the 

name of the City of Vestavia Hills by the mayor and countersigned by the city manager; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that if an 

ordinance is published by posting, then in such event said ordinance shall take effect five 

days thereafter; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) is the owner of real 

property situated in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, which said 



Ordinance Number 2625 
Page 2 

 
real estate shall hereinafter be referred to as the “subject property” and is more 

particularly described as follows: 

Public Works/City Shop Facility located at 1280 Montgomery Highway; 
2.34 acres, more or less; and 
 

 WHEREAS, BAMA Custard, LLC, organized in the State of Kansas and 

qualified to do business in the State of Alabama (“Purchaser”), has requested that the 

City declare said property as surplus and offer for sale to the Purchaser; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it is willing to accept the offer by 

BAMA Custard, LLC; for an amount equivalent to One Million, Two-Hundred Thousand 

Dollars ($1,200,000) pursuant to the terms and conditions detailed in an Agreement for 

Purchase and Sale of Real Estate (“Agreement”); a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A, 

attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2625 as though written fully 

therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and 

determines that the subject property is not needed for municipal or public purposes; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The subject property is found and determined to not be needed for public 

or municipal purposes by the City of Vestavia Hills and is hereby declared as surplus 

property all in accordance with the requirements of Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver all documents required to close said sale for and on behalf of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama pursuant to the terms and conditions as detailed in the 

attached Exhibit A; and 

 3. A copy of said real estate closing documents, along with said payment, 

will be submitted upon closing and kept on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for inspection by members of the general public. 

 4. Upon approval, adoption and enactment of this Ordinance Number 2625 

the Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all legal 



Ordinance Number 2625 
Page 3 

 
action necessary to close the sale of the subject property all in accordance with the terms, 

provisions and conditions previously described. 

 5. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its approval, adoption, 

enactment and publication by posting as set forth in Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 

1975. 

 6. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to 

invalidate or impair the remainder of this Ordinance which shall continue in full force 

and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

 DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of January, 

2016. 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
 
 
      By_________________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
       
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2625 
Page 4 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2625 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 28th day of December, 2015 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the ______ day of 
______________, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625



Exhibit A - Ordinnace No. 2625







Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



Exhibits for Ordinance No.  2625



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4783 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FUND 
$599,000 FOR SHAC, PHASE II IN COORDINATION WITH THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS PARK AND RECREATION FOUNDATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation has worked 

collaboratively with the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board to plan and design the second 

phase of the Sicard Hollow Park (SHAC); and 

 WHEREAS, this Phase II includes trails, exercise equipment, pavilions, a splash pad and 

other park amenities at an estimated cost of $1,702,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the Foundation has agreed to fund most of the expense and requests that the 

City funds an amount not to exceed $599,000; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has funded said expense within the current fiscal year budget 

totaling $100,000 and the City Manager has recommended the remaining $499,000 to be funded 

from the City’s Capital Reserve Fund; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the request and feel it is in the 

best public interest to accept the recommendation of the City Manager. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to fund the City’s portion of the second phase 

of the SHAC park improvements in an amount not to exceed $599,000 ($100,000 

funded from the current fiscal year budget and the remaining $499,000 funding from 

the City’s Capital Reserve fund); and 

2. This Resolution Number 4783 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of January, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 4783 Exhibit


	2015_1228CC_A
	2015_1214CC_M ws
	2015_1214CC_M
	Ordinance 2611
	Ordinance 2612
	Ordinance 2613
	Ordinance 2614
	Ordinance 2615
	Ordinance 2616
	Ordinance 2617
	Ordinance 2618
	Ordinance 2619
	Ordinance 2620
	Ordinance 2621
	Ordinance 2622
	Ordinance 2623
	Ordinance 2624
	Resolution 4778
	Resolution 4779
	Resolution 4780
	Resolution 4781
	Resolution 4782
	Ordinance 2626
	Ordinance 2627
	Ordinance 2625
	Resolution 4783



